



Golden Gate Pembroke Welsh Corgi Fanciers, Inc.

GGPWCF Applicant(s):

Please review the attached papers. They include the Club Application Form, Constitution and By-Laws, and Code of Ethics. The Application Form should be filled out and signed by two Club members. They will review the Constitution and By-Laws and Code of Ethics with you prior to application submission. They will also write individual letters of support that must accompany your application when submitted.

Our By-Laws require that the Application and attached letters of support be read at two Club meetings. Please keep in mind that there is sometimes a two/three month gap between meetings; therefore, don't be dismayed if your application is not immediately processed. While waiting, you are welcome to attend any Club function (including meetings) and we hope you will do so.

GGPWCF APPLICANT Sponsors:

Please review the Constitution and By-Laws and Code of Ethics with the applicant(s), making sure that the Code of Ethics, especially, is understood in all aspects. Each Sponsor should write an individual letter of support to accompany the Application. These letters will be read to the Board and General Membership. Each Sponsor must have known the applicant(s) for at least six months.

Should you have any questions, please contact Joan Gibson Reid at jgrcorgis@comcast.net.

MAIL COMPLETED APPLICATION, LETTERS OF SUPPORT, AND FEES:

Joan Gibson Reid
9589 Sheldon Road
Elk Grove, CA 95624



Application for Membership

Golden Gate Pembroke Welsh Corgi Fanciers, Inc.

(Please type or print)

Name:		Occupation:	
Co-Applicant:		Occupation:	
Address:			
City:	ST:	Country:	ZIP:
Kennel Name:		Email:	
Home Phone:		Work Phone:	
Cell Phone:		FAX:	
How long have you owned Corgis?		Other dog clubs to which you belong (if any)	
How many litters have you bred in the past two years?		Over 18 years old? <input type="checkbox"/> Yes <input type="checkbox"/> No	
Have you ever been denied membership in any dog club? <input type="checkbox"/> Yes <input type="checkbox"/> No		Suspended by any dog club or AKC? <input type="checkbox"/> Yes <input type="checkbox"/> No	

Please list the following information for ALL dogs living with you, CORGIS first, other breeds last.

(Continue on reverse side if necessary)

Registered Name	Age	Sex	Co-Owned
		<input type="checkbox"/> M <input type="checkbox"/> F	<input type="checkbox"/> Yes <input type="checkbox"/> No
		<input type="checkbox"/> M <input type="checkbox"/> F	<input type="checkbox"/> Yes <input type="checkbox"/> No
		<input type="checkbox"/> M <input type="checkbox"/> F	<input type="checkbox"/> Yes <input type="checkbox"/> No
		<input type="checkbox"/> M <input type="checkbox"/> F	<input type="checkbox"/> Yes <input type="checkbox"/> No
		<input type="checkbox"/> M <input type="checkbox"/> F	<input type="checkbox"/> Yes <input type="checkbox"/> No

On reverse side, list all dogs owned or co-owned by you that are LIVING ELSEWHERE. Indicate co-owner's name, address, phone number and email.

The undersigned applicant(s) have read the Constitution and Bylaws of the Golden Gate Pembroke Welsh Corgi Fanciers, Inc., including the Code of Ethics, and agree to abide by the aforementioned documents as well and the Rules and Regulations of the American Kennel Club.

Signed:		Date:	
Signed:		Date:	
SPONSORS' SIGNATURES: Must have known the applicant(s) for at least six months			
Name:		Name:	
Address:		Address:	
City:	ST:	ZIP:	City: ST: ZIP:

~*~*~ Note to Sponsors: Please submit letters of recommendation ~*~*~

DUES of \$40.00 per individual; \$50.00 per Family; \$50.00 if Co-Applicant resides at same address

Date Received:	Bank:	Check #
First Reading:	Second Reading:	Approved? <input type="checkbox"/> Yes <input type="checkbox"/> No

Please list the following information for ALL dogs living with you, CORGIS first, other breeds last.
(Continued from reverse side.)

Registered Name	Age	Sex	Co-Owned
		<input type="checkbox"/> M <input type="checkbox"/> F	<input type="checkbox"/> Yes <input type="checkbox"/> No
		<input type="checkbox"/> M <input type="checkbox"/> F	<input type="checkbox"/> Yes <input type="checkbox"/> No
		<input type="checkbox"/> M <input type="checkbox"/> F	<input type="checkbox"/> Yes <input type="checkbox"/> No
		<input type="checkbox"/> M <input type="checkbox"/> F	<input type="checkbox"/> Yes <input type="checkbox"/> No
		<input type="checkbox"/> M <input type="checkbox"/> F	<input type="checkbox"/> Yes <input type="checkbox"/> No

All dogs owned or co-owned, living elsewhere. Please indicate co-owner's name, address, phone number and email. (From reverse side)

Registered Name	Breed	Age	Co-owner's name, address, phone and email

Please indicate your interest by checking all appropriate boxes:		Please indicate your expertise by checking all appropriate boxes:	
<input type="checkbox"/> Showing	<input type="checkbox"/> Agility	<input type="checkbox"/> Photography	
<input type="checkbox"/> Breeding	<input type="checkbox"/> Tracking	<input type="checkbox"/> Graphic Artist/ Artist	
<input type="checkbox"/> Obedience	<input type="checkbox"/> Therapy Dog	<input type="checkbox"/> Cooking	
<input type="checkbox"/> Rally	<input type="checkbox"/> Herding	<input type="checkbox"/> Carpentry	
<input type="checkbox"/> Other (please explain)		<input type="checkbox"/> Publicity	
		<input type="checkbox"/> Crafts (please explain)	

How would you like to participate in the club? Check all appropriate boxes:	<input type="checkbox"/> Computers: (please explain)
<input type="checkbox"/> Club Officer/Board Member	
<input type="checkbox"/> Ring Steward	
<input type="checkbox"/> Awards Banquet	
<input type="checkbox"/> Clerical	
<input type="checkbox"/> Publicity/Public Outreach	<input type="checkbox"/> Other (please explain)
<input type="checkbox"/> Ways and Means (Fund Raising)	
<input type="checkbox"/> C.A.R.E. (Committee Rescue)	
<input type="checkbox"/> Raffle Coordinator	
<input type="checkbox"/> Other (please explain)	

Code of Ethics

GOLDEN GATE PEMBROKE WELSH CORGI FANCIERS, INC.

The Code of Ethics is established in accordance with the objectives of the GGPWCF to protect and advance the interests of the Pembroke Welsh Corgi. It is written to provide guidelines for responsible ownership and ethical breeding practices, and it is dedicated to the preservation and welfare of the Pembroke Welsh Corgi.

All Members:

1. GGPWCF and Affiliate Club members shall be responsible for adherence to the Code of Ethics.
2. Individual members of the GGPWCF and an Officer of each Affiliate Club shall re-affirm acceptance of the Code of Ethics on an annual basis, by written confirmation accompanying the GGPWCF dues notice.
3. Shall maintain the best possible standard of health, cleanliness, safety and care of their Pembroke Welsh Corgi.
4. Shall consider breeding a litter only if the breeder is prepared to keep the resultant offspring for as long as it takes to suitably place each puppy.
5. Shall take lifetime responsibility to ensure that Pembrokes of their breeding are cared for in a safe and healthy environment.
6. Shall not release Pembroke Welsh Corgi litters, puppies or adults to pet dealers, commercial retailers or distributors or to any party for the purpose of resale, auction, lottery or raffle prize.
7. Shall sell puppies and adults in a manner that reflects the member's care, concern and integrity, by selling puppies or adults in good condition, good health, and of sound temperament.
8. Shall display good sportsmanship and conduct at all times and in such a manner as to reflect credit upon themselves, the GGPWCF, and the breed.
9. Shall bear responsibility for truth and accuracy of any photographs or information personally used for breeding or advertisement.
10. Shall be accountable for the actions of a handler in their employ as they pertain to the Code of Ethics.
11. A Pembroke bred by a member of the GGPWCF or sired by a stud dog owned by a member of the GGPWCF that is turned into rescue shall be provided for, financially or in fact, by the breeder or stud dog owner.

Breeders and Owners of Bitches and Stud Dogs, Alike, Should:

1. Agree that the prime objective for breeding the Pembroke Welsh Corgi is to produce animals of exceptional quality. To that end, only breed dogs and bitches of sound temperament and structure, good health, and characteristic type as described in the American Kennel Club's (AKC) approved Official Standard for the Pembroke Welsh Corgi.
2. Be informed of and work diligently toward the elimination of hereditary health problems of the breed by refraining from breeding a dog or bitch if they have, in 2 litters to different partners, produced offspring with the same serious genetic defect, such as: blindness, deafness, PDA, lameness, or impairment of vital functions which prevent these offspring from living a normal, healthy life without major surgical or significant medical intervention.
3. Ensure that bitches and dogs to be bred are in robust health. Eyes and hips should be checked by accredited veterinarians and declared to be within normal limits. Members should make an effort to submit all health tests performed to the Canine Health Information Center (CHIC), for inclusion in their database.
4. Not breed a bitch prior to 1 year of age or older than 8 years; not permit more than 6 litters in her lifetime; not breed a bitch more than 2 out of 3 consecutive seasons.
5. Not breed to an unregistered Pembroke Welsh Corgi.
6. Honor all contracts regarding sales, co-ownerships, breeding rights, agreements, compensations, leases, stud service and/or any other written agreements set forth.
7. Acknowledge that the owner of the sire is as responsible as the owner of the dam in all matters of the welfare of the offspring. Anyone standing a Pembroke at stud bears great responsibility to the future of the breed; therefore, a stud owner should use the dog discriminately and with the paramount intention of advancing and protecting the breed.
8. Release puppies only at or over the age of 10 weeks.
9. Furnish written instructions on the care, feeding and health care to the new owner, as well as a written health record of immunizations or medical treatments.
10. Sell puppies and adults with a Health Certificate issued by an accredited veterinarian within a month prior to sale or request that the puppy or adult be examined by the new owner's veterinarian within two weeks of the transfer.
11. Provide accurate and valid documentation of the AKC registration and pedigree.
12. Use a spay/neuter contract in the sale of a puppy or adult that shows a health issue or very serious fault as described in the Standard. Members are encouraged to use the limited registration option offered by the AKC.
13. Be prepared to accept and provide care for any puppy/adult returned directly to the breeder.

It Is Strongly Recommended That:

1. Written agreements be used in all practices of co-ownerships, breeding and/or selling of Pembroke Welsh Corgis.
2. GGPWCF members serve as ongoing ambassadors to all individuals interested in our breed.
3. A copy of the Code of Ethics be given to each buyer at the time of sale.

Violations of the Code of Ethics shall be considered prejudicial to the best interest of the Club or the breed. As such, charges are addressed in Article VII – Discipline, Section 2, of the GGPWCF Constitution and By-Laws.

Voted and Accepted by GGPWCF Membership, March 4, 2007
Effective January 1, 2008

Signed _____

Date _____

CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS

GOLDEN GATE PEMBROKE WELSH CORGI FANCIERS, INC.

ARTICLE I

NAME AND OBJECTIVES

Section 1. The name of the Club shall be Golden Gate Pembroke Welsh Corgi Fanciers, Inc.

Section 2. The objectives of the Club shall be:

a): To ensure the continuing existence of purebred Pembroke Welsh Corgis which adhere to the standard of the breed as approved by the American Kennel Club and to do all possible to bring their natural qualities to perfection.

b): To urge members and breeders to accept the standard of the breed as approved by The American Kennel Club as the only standard of excellence by which Pembroke Welsh Corgis shall be judged.

c): To do all in its power to protect and advance the interests of the breed and encourage sportsmanlike competition at dog shows, obedience trials and other performance events.

d): To conduct sanctioned and licensed specialty shows and obedience trials and other events.

e): To instruct and guide the membership in the Club Code of Ethics.

Section 3. The Club shall not be conducted or operated for profit and no part of any profits or remainder or residue from dues and donations to the Club shall inure to the benefit of any member or individual.

ARTICLE II

MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. Eligibility. There shall be three classes of membership: Honorary, Regular and Junior.

a): Honorary: The members of the Club may, from time to time, recognize significant contributions to the breed and/or the Club by the election of the person to Honorary Membership in the Club. Such election shall be by the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the members present and voting at any regular Club meeting.

b): Regular: Membership shall be open to all persons eighteen years of age or older who are in good standing with The American Kennel Club and who subscribe to the objectives of this Club.

c): Junior: Junior Membership shall be open to any person from nine through seventeen years of age who is in good standing with The American Kennel Club. Junior members may convert to a single regular membership upon reaching their eighteenth birthday. Junior members shall not be entitled to vote or hold office but shall be eligible for annual trophies or awards. Junior membership dues are to be one-half of regular member dues.

Section 2. Dues. Annual membership dues will be set by members present at a general membership meeting held no later than August 31 and are to be payable on or before the last day of December of the current year. No member may vote whose dues are not paid. During the month of October, the Treasurer shall send to each member a statement of dues for the ensuing year. Dues of applicants voted into membership during the month of December shall be waived for the following fiscal year.

Section 3. Election to Membership. Each applicant for membership shall apply on a form approved by the Board of Directors and which shall provide that the applicant agrees to abide by these GGPWCF Constitution and Bylaws, the GGPWCF Code of Ethics and also the rules of The American Kennel Club. The application shall state the name, address and occupation of the applicant and it shall carry the endorsement of two members who have reviewed all appropriate paperwork. Accompanying the application, the prospective member(s) shall submit the current membership dues. These dues are refundable if the applicant(s) are rejected. All applications are to be filed with the Corresponding Secretary and each application is to be read at the first General Meeting of the Club following its receipt and shall be reviewed at any intervening Board Meeting(s) for Board action. At the next General Club meeting the application will be voted upon by secret written ballot and affirmative votes of three fourths of the members present and voting at that meeting are required for election to membership. Applicants for membership who have been rejected by the Club may not reapply within six months after such rejection.

Section 4. Termination of Membership. Memberships may be terminated:

a): By resignation: Any members in good standing may resign from the Club upon written notice to the Corresponding Secretary, but no member may resign when in debt to the Club. Dues obligations are considered a debt to the Club and become incurred on the first day of each fiscal year.

b): By lapsing: A membership will be considered as lapsed and automatically terminated if such member's dues remain unpaid 30 days after the first day of the fiscal year. The Board may levy a fine not to exceed the current annual dues in granting an additional 30 days of grace to such delinquent members in meritorious cases. In no case may a person be entitled to vote at any Club meeting whose dues are unpaid as of the date of that meeting.

c): By expulsion: A membership may be terminated by expulsion as provided in Article VII of the Constitution and Bylaws.

ARTICLE III

MEETINGS

Section 1. Club Meetings. Meetings shall be held at least quarterly, at such hour and place as may be designated by the President. Written notice of each such meeting shall be emailed or mailed by regular U.S. mail by the Recording Secretary or a designee at least 10 days prior to the date of the meeting. The quorum for such a meeting shall be nine members or 25 percent of the membership, whichever is less, and shall include at least three members of the Board of Directors. The Recording Secretary or designee will contact all members to determine which members would prefer receiving notices of meetings by email rather than U.S. mail. The Recording Secretary or designee would then send appropriate email messages to those who prefer that method.

Section 2. Special Club Meetings. Special meetings shall be called by the President or by a majority vote of the Board who are present and voting at any regular or special meeting of the Board, or by the Recording Secretary or a designee upon receipt of a petition signed by five members of the Club who are in good standing. Such special meetings shall be held in the city designated by the President and at such hour and place as may be designated by the President. Written notice of such meeting shall be mailed by U.S. mail or emailed by the Recording Secretary or designee at least five (5) days and not more than 15 days prior to the date of the meeting. As specified in Section 1 above, the Recording Secretary or designee will send the notice of the meeting by email to those members who have indicated their preference for that method. The notice of the meeting shall state the purpose of the meeting and no other Club business may be transacted thereat. The quorum for such a meeting shall be nine members or 25 percent of the membership, whichever is less, and shall include at least three members of the Board of Directors.

Section 3. Board Meetings. Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at least quarterly in the city designated by a majority of those present, at such hour and place as may be designated by the President. Written notice of each such meeting shall be mailed or emailed to the Board by the Recording Secretary or a designee not more than 21 and no less than five (5) days prior to the date of the meeting. The quorum for such a meeting shall be a majority of the Board.

Section 4. Special Board Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called by the President, or by the Recording Secretary or a designee, upon receipt of a petition signed by at least (3) members of the Board in good standing, by telephone or by email. Written notice of each such meeting shall be mailed or emailed by the Recording Secretary, or a designee, to the board. Such meetings shall be held in the city designated by the President and at such hour and place as may be designated by the President. Any such notice shall state the purpose of the meeting and no other business shall be transacted thereat. A quorum shall be a majority of the Board.

ARTICLE IV

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Section 1. Board of Directors. The Board shall be comprised of the President, Vice President, Recording Secretary, Corresponding Secretary, Treasurer, Immediate Past President, and five (5) other persons, all of whom shall be members in good standing. They shall be elected for two-year terms at the Club's annual meeting as provided in Article V, and/or shall serve until their successors are elected. General management of the Club's affairs shall be entrusted to the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Officers. The Board shall be comprised of the President, Vice President, Recording Secretary, Corresponding Secretary, Treasurer, Immediate Past President, and five (5) other persons, all of whom shall be members in good standing. They shall be elected for two-year terms at the Club's annual meeting as provided in Article V, and/or shall serve until their successors are elected. General management of the Club's affairs shall be entrusted to the Board of Directors.

a): The President shall preside at all meetings of the Club and of the Board and shall have the duties and powers normally appurtenant to the office of President in addition to those particularly specified in the Constitution and Bylaws.

b): The Vice President shall have the powers and exercise the duties of the President in case of the President's death, absence or incapacity.

c): The Recording Secretary shall keep a record of all meetings of the Club and of the Board, of all votes

conducted by mail at board or general meetings, and of all matters of which a record shall be ordered by the Club; shall ensure that current records are available at each Board and General Meeting; shall notify members of meetings, notify officers and directors of their election to office; keep a roll of the members of the Club with their addresses and contact information and shall have it in the hands of the membership during the month of February each year.

d): The Corresponding Secretary shall conduct Club correspondence and notify new members of their election to membership. He/she shall perform such other duties as are prescribed in the Constitution and Bylaws, or as may be assigned by the President or Board of Directors.

e): The Treasurer shall collect and receive all monies due or belonging to the Club and keep a record thereof; and shall deposit the same in a bank, satisfactory to the Board, in the name of the Club. He/she shall disburse such funds required to conduct the normal business of the Club upon receipt of a legitimate bill. The Treasurer's books shall at all times be open to inspection by the Board. The treasurer shall provide a written report at every meeting of the Club's finances and every item or receipt or payment not previously reported; and at the annual meeting shall render an account of all the monies received and expended during the previous fiscal year. The Treasurer shall be bonded for an amount as the Board of Directors shall determine. The Treasurer shall prepare and submit, prior to delinquency, all tax reports.

Section 3. Vacancies. Any vacancies occurring on the Board during the year may be filled for the unexpired term of office by a majority vote of all the then-members of the Board at its regular meeting following the creation of such vacancy.

Section 4. Absences. Any officer absent for two consecutive regular meetings may, at the discretion of the Board, be removed from said office and the Board of Directors shall appoint a successor for the unexpired term.

Section 5. Restriction on Interested Directors. Not more than 49 percent of the persons serving on the Board of Directors at any time may be interested persons. An interested person is (i) any person being compensated by the Club for services rendered to it within the previous 12 months, whether as a full-time or part-time employee, independent contractor, or otherwise, excluding any reasonable compensation paid for Club-related expenses; and (ii) any brother, sister, ancestor, descendant, spouse, brother-in-law, mother-in-law, or father-in-law of any such person. Any violation of the provisions of this paragraph, however, shall not affect the validity of enforceability of any transaction entered into by the Club.

ARTICLE V

THE CLUB YEAR, ANNUAL MEETING, ELECTIONS

Section 1. Club Year. The Club's fiscal year shall begin on the first day of January and end on the 31st day of December. The Club's official year shall begin immediately at the conclusion of the election at the annual meeting and shall continue through the election at the next annual meeting. Elections are to occur only every 2 years since all elections of officers are for two years.

Section 2. Annual Meeting. The annual meeting shall be held in the month of January at which meeting directors and officers shall be elected in accordance with Sections 1 and 4 of this Article. They shall continue for the two years for which they are elected.

Section 3. Proxies. Proxy voting will not be permitted at any Club meeting or election.

Section 4. Nominations. No person may be a candidate in a Club election who has not been nominated in accordance with the Constitution and Bylaws. During or before the month of October, the Board shall select a nominating Committee consisting of three members and two alternates, not more than one of whom shall be a member of the Board. The Recording Secretary shall immediately notify the committee and alternates of their selection. The Board shall name a Chair for the committee and it shall be his/her duty to call a committee meeting which shall be held on or before November 15.

a): The committee shall nominate one candidate for each office and five candidates for the five other positions on the Board and, after receiving the written acceptance of each nominee so chosen, shall immediately report their nominations to the Recording Secretary in writing.

b): Upon receipt of the Nominating Committee's report, the Recording Secretary shall, on or before November 30, notify each member in writing of the candidates so nominated.

c) : Additional nominations may be made at the December meeting by any member in attendance providing that the person so nominated does not decline when his/her name is proposed and provided further that if the proposed candidate is not in attendance at this meeting, the proposer shall present to the Recording Secretary a written statement from the proposed candidate signifying willingness to be a candidate. No person may be a candidate for more than one position; the additional nominations which are provided for herein may be made only from those members who have not accepted a nomination of the Nominating Committee.

d.): Nominations cannot be made at the annual meeting or in any manner other than as provided in this Section.

Section 5. Ballots. If no nominations are made at the December meeting, the Nominating Committee's slate shall be declared elected at the annual meeting and no balloting shall be required. The Recording Secretary shall so notify each member if one or more additional nominations are made at the December meeting.

a): The President shall appoint, at the December meeting, three inspectors of Election. No Inspector may be appointed who is, or resides with, a candidate for office. One of these shall be designated Chair.

b): The Recording Secretary shall send each member a ballot on or before December 31. This ballot shall list all the nominees for each position in alphabetical order, together with a blank envelope and a return envelope addressed to the Chair of Inspectors of Election, marked "Ballot" and bearing the name of the member to whom it was sent. No other Club notice may accompany the ballot. So that the ballots may remain secret, each voter, after marking the ballot, shall seal it in the blank envelope addressed to the Inspector Chair. This ballot deadline must be no less than seven days prior to the date of the annual meeting.

c): The ballots shall be counted by the Inspectors of Election. The Treasurer shall supply the Inspectors with a list of members who are in good standing that shall be used in ascertaining the validity of each ballot. At least five (5) days before the meeting, the Inspectors of Election shall convene to open the ballot envelopes and remove the blank envelopes. Upon completion of this task, they shall open the blank envelopes and count the votes.

d): The results of the vote shall be sent to the Club President, who shall announce them at the annual meeting in the proper order of business. In the event of a tie vote, the Chair of Inspectors of Election shall have prepared a written ballot that will be used by those in attendance at the annual meeting to break the tie. No further mail ballots will be sent. The Inspectors will not reveal the results of the election to anyone except the President.

Section 6. Voting. At meetings of the Club, voting shall be limited to those members in good standing who are present, except for the annual election of officers and directors which shall be handled as described in Section 5 of this Article. The Board of Directors or a majority of members present and voting at any regular General Meeting may decide to submit other specific questions for decision of members by written ballot cast by mail.

ARTICLE VI

COMMITTEES

Section 1. The President shall each year appoint Chairs of Committees established to advance the work of the Club in such matters as dog shows, obedience trials, trophies, annual awards, and other fields which may well be served by the committees. Other members of the particular committee may be selected by the Chair, or may be appointed by the President after consultation with the Chair. Written reports should be given to the Board at the annual meeting. Such committees shall always be subject to the final authority of the President.

Section 2. Any committee appointment may be terminated by resignation or by dismissal by a two-thirds majority of the Board. Such vacancy shall be filled in accordance with Section 1 of this Article.

Section 3. During or before the month of November each year, the President shall appoint an Auditing Committee which shall consist of three (3) members, which Committee shall examine the records of the Treasurer and shall report its findings to the Club at the annual meeting.

Section 4. The Board shall appoint annually a representative to the Pembroke Welsh Corgi Club of America for the purpose of liaison. This is to be done at the annual meeting in January.

ARTICLE VII

DISCIPLINE

Section 1. American Kennel Club Suspension. Any member who is suspended from the AKC will be suspended from all privileges of this Club for a like period.

Section 2. Charges. Any member may prefer charges against a member for alleged misconduct prejudicial to the best interests of the Club or the breed. Written charges with specifications must be filed in duplicate with the Recording Secretary together with a deposit of \$50.00 that shall be forfeited if such charges are not sustained. The Recording Secretary shall promptly send one copy of the charges to the accused member by both regular US mail and registered mail, together with a notice of the hearing and an assurance that the defendant may personally appear in his/her own defense and bring witnesses if he/she wishes. The defendant shall acknowledge receipt to the Recording Secretary within 45 days. Failure to respond shall result in automatic and indefinite suspension.

Section 3. Board Hearing. The Board shall have complete authority to decide whether counsel may attend the hearing, but both complainant and defendant shall be treated uniformly in that regard. Should the charges be sustained, after hearing all the evidence and testimony presented by complainant and defendant, the Board may, by a majority vote of those present, suspend the defendant from all privileges for no more than six months from the date of the hearing. And, if it deems that punishment insufficient, it may also recommend to the membership that the penalty be expulsion. In such

case, the suspension shall not restrict the defendant's right to appear before fellow-members at the ensuing Club meeting which considers the Board's recommendation. Immediately after the Board has reached a decision, its findings shall be put in written form and filed with the Recording Secretary. The Recording Secretary, in turn, shall notify each of the parties of the Board's decision and penalty, if any.

Section 4. Expulsion. Expulsion of a member from the Club may be accomplished only at a meeting of the Club following a Board hearing and upon the Board's recommendation as provided in Section 3 of this Article. Such proceedings may occur at a regular or special meeting of the Club to be held within 60 days but not earlier than 30 days after the date of the Board's recommendation of expulsion. The defendant shall have the privilege of appearing in his/her own behalf, though no evidence shall be taken at this meeting. The President shall read the charges and the Board's findings and invite the defendant, if present, to speak in his/her own behalf if he/she wishes. The members shall then vote by secret written ballot on the proposed expulsion. A two-thirds vote of those present at the meeting shall be necessary for expulsion. If expulsion is not so voted, the Board's suspension shall stand.

ARTICLE VIII

AMENDMENTS

Section 1. Amendments The Constitution and Bylaws and/or Code of Ethics may be amended by a majority vote of the members present and voting at any regular or special meeting called for the purpose; but the proposed amendments must be embodied in the call for any such meeting and distributed to each member at least 10 days prior to the date of such meeting.

ARTICLE IX

ORDER OF BUSINESS

Section 1. At Meetings of the Club, the order of business, so far as the character and nature of the meetings may permit, shall be as follows:

- Roll Call
- Minutes of last meeting
- Report of Board
- Report of President
- Report of Recording Secretary
- Report of Corresponding Secretary
- Report of Treasurer
- Report of Committees
- Election of Officers and Board (Annual Meeting)
- Election of new members
- Unfinished Business

New Business
Adjournment

Section 2. At meetings of the Board the order of business, unless otherwise directed by a majority of those present, shall be as follows:

Roll Call
Reading of minutes of last meeting.
Report of President
Report of Recording Secretary
Report of Corresponding Secretary
Report of Treasurer
Report of Committees
Unfinished Business
New Business
Adjournment

ARTICLE X

DEDICATION OF ASSETS

The Club may be dissolved at any time by written consent of not less than two-thirds of the members. The properties and assets of this Club are irrevocably dedicated to charitable purposes. No part of the net earnings, properties or assets of this Club, on dissolution or otherwise, shall inure to the benefit of any private person or individual, or any member or director of the Club. On liquidation or dissolution, all properties and assets and obligations shall be distributed and paid over to a charitable organization for the benefit of dogs, as selected by the Board of Directors.

Approved: Golden Gate Pembroke Welsh Corgi Fanciers, Inc., August 22, 2010